
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
   

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 
 Tuesday, May 14, 2013 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 May 7, 2013 
 

   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
    
   Animal Control 

a. Contract w/Tri-City Fence, Inc for Installation of Chain Link Fence    
Commissioners 
b. Reappointment of L Bunch to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council  
c. Reappointment of C Adrian to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council   
d. Reappointment of C Freed to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
e. Reappointment of N Moorer to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
f. Reappointment of T Samuel to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
g. Appointment of D Donley to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
h. Appointment of G Gales to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council 
Facilities 
i.  Contract w/Banlin Construction to Install New Window @ the Jail 
Fairgrounds 
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 
Human Services 
k. Grant Agreement w/Elijah Family Homes for Rehabilitation Project Funding   
l. Grant Agreement w/Catholic Family & Child Service of the Tri-Cities for Rental Assistance 
Juvenile 
m. Amended Contract w/Educational Services District 123   
Office of Public Defense 
n. Termination of Superior Court Legal Financial Obligation Public Defense Contract w/J Azure 
o. Superior Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/S Henwood 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted areas.

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
May 14, 2013 
Page 2 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

p. Superior Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/D Stovern 
Public Works 
q. Lease Agreement w/L&M Truck Sales, Inc. 
r. Order & Agreement for the City of Prosser Franchise  
Sheriff 
s. Amended Contract w/Bergstrom Aircraft, Inc. for Aircraft Maintenance & Repair 
t. Purchase Agreement w/Office Depot for Office Supplies 
 
Public Hearing 
 
Desert Winds Wireless Franchise ~ S Schuetze   
 

   Ordinance Relating to Public Records ~ R Lukson 
 
Scheduled Business 

 
Benton County Groundwater Discussion ~ D Olsen & Comnr Delvin 
 
Benton County Jail Mental Health Enhancements - Pilot Program Discussion ~ E Thornbrugh 
 
WSU Regional Tree Fruit & Wine Grape Extension Program ~ M Ophardt 
 
Interfund Loan to Treasurer’s Investment Pool Fund Update ~ N Kooiker 
 
Animal Control Update ~ K Mercer   
 

  Grant De-Obligation ~ S Becken 
 
  Proposed Kennewick Shop Discussion ~ S Becken 

 
Unscheduled Visitors 

   Board Assignment Update  
 
   Executive Session 
 
   Potential Litigation ~ S Hallstrom 
     

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, May 7, 2013, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
Present: Chairman Shon Small 
  Commissioner James Beaver  
  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Public Works Manager Steve 
Becken; County Engineer Daniel Ford; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan 
Brown; Jacki Lahtinen, District Court; Teri Holmes, Ken Denn, and Robert Heard, Central 
Services; Nick Kooiker, Treasurer; Clerk Josie Delvin; Auditor Brenda Chilton; RJ Lott, 
Planning; Ed Thornbrugh, Human Services; Dean Docken, Facilities; Rosie Sparks and Aileen 
Coverdell, Auditor’s Office.  
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of April 30, 2013 were approved.   
 
Agenda Approval 
 
Chairman Small requested item “b” (Architectural & Engineering – HVAC Design) be pulled for 
discussion.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “n”, 
pulling “b”.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Commissioners 

a. Authorization for Architectural & Engineering Services for Courthouse Improvements  
Human Services 

c. Amended Agreement w/Salvation Army to Provide Housing & Services  
d. Amended Agreement for the Housing and Essential Needs Grant 

Personnel 
e. Denial of County Claim CC 2013-04  



 - 2 - 

Planning 
f. Short Plan Vacation 12-04 

Public Works 
g. Property Segregation for C.R.I.D. #15; Amending Resolution 2013-329 
h. Amendment No. 1 for C.R.A.B. Agreement-Nine Canyon Phase 2 – Beck Rd. to Mills 

Rd. 
i. C.R.A.B. Agreement – Nine Canyon Road Phase 3 – Coffin Rd. to Beck Rd.  
j. Appropriated Sums for Bituminous Surface Treatment 2013  
k. Approving the Updated Benton County Public Works Organizational Chart  

Sheriff 
l. Line Item Transfer, Dept. 121 
m. Purchase of Patrol K-9 Dog 
n. Authorization to Purchase Ammunition from San Diego Police Equipment Company  

 
Item “b” - Architectural & Engineering – HVAC Schematic Design 
 
Chairman Small said he knew there were problems with the air conditioning system and that this 
was originally brought up in December 2012.  He asked if anything in the design had changed 
since that time or if there were additional fees above the $38,750.00; additionally, he noted the 
upgrades could cost up to $1.5 million.   
 
Mr. Docken said he talked to the architect just this morning and was told it was a pretty in depth 
study.  They would be looking at each room, would bring in structural and mechanical 
consultants, and look at individual loads.  He said once the design was done, they would be ready 
to go to bid based on estimates.  He commented that the original HVAC system was 
commissioned in 1986.  Commissioner Beaver asked about air quality issues being addressed 
and Mr. Sparks said he believed the new system would improve circulation and quality in the 
building.  
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve item “b” as presented.  Commissioner 
Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Public Hearing - SPV 13-03  
 
R.J. Lott said the On March 12, 1991, Short Plat 1723 was recorded, which created 2 Lots. Short 
Plat 1723 included a 20-foot drainage easement in the East half of both lots. In 1993, a boundary 
line adjustment added the West 75 feet of Lot 1 of Short Plat 1723 to Lot 1 of Short Plat 1883. 
The owners of Lot 1 of Short Plat 1883 have submitted an application requesting that a portion 
of the easement noted above be vacated off of the face of Lot 1 of Short Plat 1723 and relocated 
approximately 10 feet to the West. 
 
He said that all concerned agencies were notified and the Public Works Department said the new 
drainage easement must be 20 feet wide.  He said the Planning Department recommended 
approval of the proposed vacation, conditioned on the new portion of the drainage easement be at 
least 20 feet in width, recorded with the Auditor, and a profile drawing with a legal description 
of the drainage easement be presented to the Public Works Department.   



 - 3 - 

 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the vacation of SPV 13-03 as 
recommended with conditions.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Benton City Economic Development Council – Quarterly Update 
 
Bea Baker updated the Board on the following projects in Benton City: 
 

• Numerous investors and promoters looking at the land 
• New businesses - mercantile opened up (in old fire station) and fertilizer company; U-

Haul; new newspaper;  
• Roundabout coming; 
• Events  

o Car show – money goes to youth organizations 
o Vineyard City arts festival 

 
Hanford Cleanup Budget Update 
 
Adam Fyall briefed the Board on materials that were submitted at the recent Energy 
Communities Alliance (ECA) peer exchange in Washington DC that he and Commissioner 
Beaver attended.  He highlighted items of interest to the Tri-cities relating to cleanup funding, 
work schedules and jobs at Hanford.   
 
Commissioner Beaver suggested the Board send a gentle reminder to the Governor that Benton 
County was not interested in new tanks and would like to have continued support for Hanford 
Cleanup.  Mr. Fyall said as the cleanup caucus shrank that was pushing for cleanup, it was 
important to stress that cleanup strategies remain in place. 
 
2011-2012 Expenditure and Revenue Budget Discussion 
 
Keith Mercer presented the 2011-2012 budget highlights for discussion.  He said the 2011-2012 
budget had $3.6 million unexpended or 96.9% used, with the majority from salaries (due to 
attrition).  Commissioner Delvin asked if there were any budget standards out there and if 96.9% 
fit that standard.  Mr. Sparks stated in the past the County had been at 7% to 8% unexpended but 
they had been holding a pretty tight base line and if they were at the 2-4% range, they were 
pretty good.  He commented they had also had a savings on retirement during that budget that 
was not expected.   
 
Commissioner Beaver said the County had been putting money into IT improvements and 
needed to continue to invest in development so it could lower its operating overhead; he said he 
was in favor of using resources to modernize.   
 



 - 4 - 

Commissioner Delvin suggested the Board take a day to have a workshop/retreat and work on 
creating a five-year plan.   
 
David Sparks stated that it was imperative for labor negotiations to keep costs down so they 
could keep the overhead down.  He said he would be working with the Treasurer and Auditor to 
create a mid-biennium report after they looked at taxes and it would be a good opportunity to 
have a workshop at that point during mid-biennium.   
 
Chairman Small said Mr. Sparks and the County had done a good job taking advantage of 
attrition by taking time to evaluate positions when somebody left to see if those tasks could be 
given to others or if the position was really needed.   
 
Mr. Mercer then discussed revenues and said with the retail/use tax they deliberately budgeted 
low because they didn’t want to balance the budget on money received from stimulus funds.  The 
revenue came in $3.7 million over budget. Mr. Sparks said they backed out the stimulus money 
and based on figures the stimulus money was about $2 million.  He said by far the biggest 
unknown revenue for the County was sales tax.  Additionally, most of the union contracts had 
openers for 2014 and most also included one-time payments to the employees; part of the 
leftover was for capital, but part was for employees.   
 
Voice Network Upgrade Presentation 
 
Kenn Denn gave a presentation on a new voice networtk upgrade.  He said the current lease 
ended in March 2014 and they had been leasing for the past 10 years.  He said they currently had 
four separate networks and had been working on a solution to resolve some of their current 
issues.  He said a consolidation of the network would reduce the number of components needed 
by 50-60%, would have a single centralized management interface system and would reduce the 
cabling network; he said they designed a new system that had a single point of failure, a lifetime 
warranty, and easily a 10-year solution.   
 
Commissioner Delvin asked what the new system would do for the average user and Mr. Denn 
said it would be seamless to the user but the biggest savings would be energy and footprint 
reduction.  The final capital cost would be approximately $1,385,000.   
 
Mr. Sparks said at the time they looked at the current system, the cost to buy was $5 million, 
which is why they decided to lease and costs have gone down considerably.   
 
Chairman Small asked the down side would be and Mr. Denn said the downside would be 
staying with the current system (currently have 10 different phones in the county; with the 
proposed system would be only three different phones).  He said that Cisco was a statewide and 
national standard and this would bring Benton County into line with what everyone else was 
doing.  Additionally, it would address many of the issues in the capital improvement plan. 
 
Mr. Dennis said the cost was $1.3 million to purchase and set up and after that would be annual 
costs for hardware warranty and a monthly service cost of $3200.    
 



 - 5 - 

The Board agreed to move forward.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Delvin said he attended a groundwater meeting in Yakima with Mike 
Shuttleworth regarding exempt wells and groundwater issues.  They were still working on the 
MOU and working with Mr. Shuttleworth on how they might deal with the exempt well issue if 
it happened.  Additionally, he attended a Transit Board meeting, met with some folks who had 
water rights for sale, and attended a Risk Pool class.  
 
Commissioner Beaver said he attended a Council of Governments meeting, chamber meeting, 
and TRIDEC.   
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve Jerome Delvin as the WSAC Board 
member appointment and himself as the alternate.  Chairman Small seconded and upon vote, the 
motion carried.   
 
Chairman Small said he attended the Greater Columbia Behavioral Health (GCBH) meeting; he 
then requested Mr. Thornbrugh come talk to the Board. Mr. Thornbrugh said that Chelan and 
Douglas Counties were their own Regional Support Network but were having financial issues 
and looking for partnerships.  He said it was his recommendation this would not be a good 
partnership.  Additionally, there was a contract amendment request by the Division of Behavioral 
Health & Recovery and they asked the GCBH to sign stating they would get it amended at a later 
date.  Commissioner Small was the only no vote (9/1) on that issue.   
 
Chairman Small said he also attended meetings for Metro Drug Task Force, PEDA, and the 
swearing in ceremony for new Superior Court Judge Sal Mendoza.   
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 05/03/2013 
Warrant #: 79802-80045 
Total all funds: $5,601.82 
 
Check Date:  05/03/2013 
Warrant #: 80058-80163 
Total all funds: $225,482.59 
 
Check Date:  05/03/2013 
Warrant #235565-235669 
Direct Deposit #: 83756-84355 
Total all funds: $2,043,173.53 
 
Check Date:  05/03/2013 
Taxes #: 10113051-10113059 
Warrant #: 80164-80183 



 - 6 - 

Total all funds: $2,024,342.09 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2013-349: Authorization for Architectural & Engineering Services for Courthouse 

Improvements  
2013-350: Amended Agreement w/Salvation Army to Provide Housing & Services  
2013-351: Amended Agreement for the Housing and Essential Needs Grant 
2013-352: Denial of County Claim CC 2013-04  
2013-353: Short Plan Vacation 12-04 
2013-354: Property Segregation for C.R.I.D. #15; Amending Resolution 2013-329 
2013-355: Amendment No. 1 for C.R.A.B. Agreement-Nine Canyon Phase 2 – Beck Rd. to 

Mills Rd. 
2013-356: C.R.A.B. Agreement – Nine Canyon Road Phase 3 – Coffin Rd. to Beck Rd.   
2013-357: Appropriated Sums for Bituminous Surface Treatment 2013  
2013-358: Approving the Updated Benton County Public Works Organizational Chart   
2013-359: Line Item Transfer, Dept. 121 
2013-360: Purchase of Patrol K-9 Dog 
2013-361: Authorization to Purchase Ammunition from San Diego Police Equipment 

Company  
2013-362: Architectural & Engineering – HVAC Schematic Design 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately10:31 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



mf
Text Box
a. Contract w/Tri-City Fence, Inc for Installation of Chain Link Fence







BENTON COUNTY  

 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 

WASHINGTON; 

 
IN THE MATTER OF REAPPOINTMENT OF LISA BUNCH TO THE BENTON-

FRANKLIN WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 

 

WHEREAS, the term of office for Lisa Bunch on the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development 

Council, Position B-12 which represents Business, expires on June 30, 2013, and 

 

WHEREAS, Lisa Bunch, Umatilla Chemical Agent Disposal Facility, 78068 Ordnance Road, 

Hermiston, OR  97838, has expressed her interest and willingness to be reappointed as a member 

on the Workforce Development Council, Position B-12 Business; NOW, THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED that Lisa Bunch is hereby reappointed, as of July 1, 2013 to fill the 

Position B-12, which represents Business, said term expiring on June 30, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
Dated               
        Chairman of the Board 
 
Attest:         
              
        Member 
      
Clerk to the Board 
              
        Member 

 
Constituting the Board of Commissioners of 
Benton County,  

        Washington 
 
         
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc:  WDC; Bunch; Benton Co. 

mf
Text Box
b. Reappointment of L Bunch to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council





mf
Text Box
c. Reappointment of C Adrian to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council



mf
Text Box
d. Reappointment of C Freed to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council



mf
Text Box
e. Reappointment of N Moorer to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council



mf
Text Box
f. Reappointment of T Samuel to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council



mf
Text Box
g. Appointment of D Donley to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council



mf
Text Box
h. Appointment of G Gales to the Benton-Franklin Workforce Development Council



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  05/14/2013     
Subject: __________ 
Prepared by:       C. McKenzie        
Reviewed by: R. Lukson     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  X 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            X  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The Facilities Manager solicited quotes from the following companies to provide labor and materials to 
furnish and install a new window in the holding cell in the Benton County Jail: 
 
CML RW Security, Erie, CO:   $18,700.00 + WSST 
Sierra Detention Systems, Brighton, CO: $13,250.00 + WSST 
Banlin Construction, LLC, Kennewick, WA: $13,950.00 (including WSST) 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Facilities Manager recommends the Board enter into a Public Works Contract with Banlin 
Construction, LLC to furnish and install a new window in the holding cell in the Benton County Jail for a 
total amount not to exceed $13,950.00 (including WSST) with the contract term expiring December 31, 
2013.    
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the resolution authorizing the Chairman to sign the Public Works Contract with Banlin Construction, 
LLC. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$13,950.00 (including WSST)  
 
Current Expense – Dept. 110, Facilities Jail Support 
No supplement required 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda 

mf
Text Box
i. Contract w/Banlin Construction to Install New Window @ the Jail



Original: File – Facilities 
cc: Auditor; R. Ozuna; CM; Banlin Construction, LLC   C. McKenzie  

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT TO BANLIN CONSTRUCTION, 
LLC TO FURNISH AND INSTALL A NEW WINDOW IN THE HOLDING CELL IN THE BENTON 
COUNTY JAIL 
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 2012-677, the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved a County-Wide 
Procurement, Leasing, and Contracting Policy; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Section 3.4.1 (Public Works Contracts less than $40,000) contracts may be entered into after 
direct negotiation and authorization by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, with such authorization 
being in the form of a resolution containing a summary of the three bid quotations obtained; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager received quotes from the following companies to furnish and install a new 
window in the holding cell in the Benton County Jail:  
 
CML RW Security, Erie, CO:   $18,700.00 + WSST 
Sierra Detention Systems, Brighton, CO:  $13,250.00 + WSST 
Banlin Construction, LLC, Kennewick, WA: $13,950.00 (including WSST) 
 
WHEREAS, the Facilities Manager recommends entering into a Public Works Contract with Banlin 
Construction, LLC, Contractor License No. BANLICL881CB to furnish and install a new window in the holding 
cell in the Benton County Jail for a total contract amount not to exceed $13,950.00 (including WSST); and   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, the Board concurs with the recommendation and hereby awards a Public Works Contract with 
Banlin Construction, LLC to furnish and install a new window in the holding cell in the Benton County Jail; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the Public Works Contract 
with Banlin Construction, LLC attached hereto in an amount not to exceed $13,950.00 including WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached contract begins when executed by both parties and 
terminates December 31, 2013.    
 
Dated this    day of    , 2013.  
         
             Chairman of the Board 
        

  _______________________________________ 
            Member 
 
         _______________________________________ 
            Member 
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 5/7/13 
Subject: line item transfer 
Prepared by:       J. Donley  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
Transfer needed to comply with line item budgeting as approved by resolution 2012-868 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve line item transfer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Transferring funds from 575.400.4198 Road Professional Services to 575.400.4894 ER & R Repair and 
maintenance. No supplement required.    
 
MOTION 
 
 
 

mf
Text Box
j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

< >

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

FAIRGROUNDS OPERATING BUDGET FUND FUND NUMBER #0124-101, 

DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM: TRANSFER TO:

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT
(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

575.400 4198 Road Professional Services $447 575.400 4894 ER&R Repair and Maintenance $447

        

TOTAL $447 TOTAL $447

Explanation:

Prepared by: John Donley, Office Manager Date:  26-Apr-2013

Approved � Denied � Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to comply with line item budgeting as approved by resolution 2012-868

Benton County Fairgrounds

Fairgrounds Operating Budget Fund

000

#0124-101



mf
Text Box
k. Grant Agreement w/Elijah Family Homes for Rehabilitation Project Funding







mf
Text Box
l. Grant Agreement w/Catholic Family & Child Service of the Tri-Cities for Rental Assistance







mf
Text Box
m. Amended Contract w/Educational Services District 123











mf
Text Box
n. Termination of Superior Court Legal Financial Obligation Public Defense Contract w/J Azure





mf
Text Box
o. Superior Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/S Henwood







mf
Text Box
p. Superior Court Indigent Defense Agreement w/D Stovern







mf
Text Box
q. Lease Agreement w/L&M Truck Sales, Inc.



mf
Text Box
r. Order & Agreement for the City of Prosser Franchise









mf
Text Box
s. Amended Contract w/Bergstrom Aircraft, Inc. for Aircraft Maintenance & Repair









mf
Text Box
t. Purchase Agreement w/Office Depot for Office Supplies









mf
Text Box
Desert Winds Wireless Franchise ~ S Schuetze





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: May 14, 2013 
Subject: Public Record 

Ordinance 
Prepared by:       Ryan Lukson 
Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  __X__ 
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _____  
Public Hearing            __X__ 
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
An ordinance relating to public records, amending Ordinance 442; revising Chapter 5.14 of the Benton 
County Code. 
 
 
 
SUMMARY :  See above. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approve a Resolution and Ordinance ratifying the board’s decision at the conclusion of its public hearing on 
this matter. 
 
 
 
MOTION:   
Move to approve and sign the Resolution and Ordinance relating to public records.   
 

mf
Text Box
Ordinance Relating to Public Records ~ R Lukson



Orig: File – Comnrs Office 
cc: Auditor; R. Ozuna;  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  
       

Chairman of the Board  
 

       
Chairman Pro-Tem 

 
         

Member 
 

Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. __________ RELATING TO 
PUBLIC RECORDS; AMENDING ORDINANCE 442, SECTION 3 AND BCC 5.14.030; 
AMENDING ORDINANCE 442, SECTION 4 AND BCC 5.14.040; AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 442, SECTION 7 AND BCC 5.14.070; AMENDING ORDINANCE 442, 
SECTION 8 AND BCC 5.14.080; AMENDING ORDINANCE 442, SECTION 9 AND BCC 
5.14.090; AMENDING ORDINANCE 442, SECTION 10 AND BCC 5.14.100; AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 442, SECTION 16 AND BCC 5.14.160; AND AMENDING ORDINANCE 
442, SECTION 17 AND BCC 5.14.170. 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was advertised and held on May 14, 2013 at 9:00 AM in the 
Commissioners meeting room, on the third floor, of the Benton County Courthouse in Prosser, 
WA to consider the above mentioned amendments of a County ordinance relating to public 
records; and  
 
WHEREAS, at said hearing, the Board of Benton County Commissioners provided an 
opportunity for testimony both for and against the adoption of ordinance ____ and considered its 
affect in amending Ordinance 442; and  
 
WHEREAS, there was no testimony in opposition to the adoption of the proposed ordinance 
amendments; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners is satisfied that it appears to be in the 
best interest of the public to adopt an ordinance to amend Ordinance 442; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby adopts Ordinance 
No. __________; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and 
adoption.  
 
 



 
NOTICE OF OPEN HEARING 

 
NOTICE OF HEARING BEFORE The Benton County Board of County Commissioners in the matter of the 
ordinance amending Chapter 5.14 of the Benton County Code regarding public records. 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a hearing will be conducted on May 14, 2013 at 9:00 a.m. at the 
Commissioners’ Board Room, Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA, at which time any person may 
appear and be heard either for or against the proposed ordinance amending Chapter 5.14 of the Benton 
County Code. 
 
THE SUMMARY of the proposed ordinance follows.  Copies of the full text will be mailed upon request at 
no cost to the public.  Further information regarding this matter and copies of the proposed ordinance are 
available from the Benton County Commissioners’ Office, PO Box 190, Prosser, WA 99350.  Telephone: 
Prosser (509) 786-5600; Tri-Cities (509) 736-3080. 
 
BASED ON THE TESTIMONY presented at the public hearing, the Benton County Board of Commissioners 
may or may not approve or disapprove of the proposed ordinance.  All concerned persons may appear 
and present any support or objections to the proposed amendments. 
 
Benton County welcomes full participation in public meetings by all citizens.  No qualified individual with a 
disability shall be excluded or denied the benefit of participating in such meetings.  If you wish to use 
auxiliary aids or require assistance to comment at this public meeting, please contact the Benton County 
Commissioners’ Office at the above phone number to make arrangements for special needs. 
 
Dated this 30 day of April, 2013. 
 
ANDY MILLER, Prosecutor 
BENTON COUNTY PROSECUTOR’S OFFICE 
 
RYAN LUKSON, Deputy Prosecutor 
BENTON COUNTY PROSECUTOR’S OFFICE 
 
PUBLISH ON: May 3, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5.14 OF  

THE BENTON COUNTY CODE 
 

SECTION 1 DEFINITIONS.  Amending the code with the correct statutory reference. 
 
SECTION 2 COUNTY FORMATION AND ORGANIZATION.  Amending the code with the correct 
statutory reference. 
 
SECTION 3 PUBLIC RECORDS OFFICER CONTACT INFORMATION.  Amending code to update 
office phone numbers.   
 
SECTION 4 REQUESTS FOR PUBLIC RECORDS.  Amending code to update current practice with 
regard to verbal public records requests and remove references to obsolete technology.   
 
SECTION 5 RESPONSE TO PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS.  Amending code to reflect current 
statutory language under RCW 42.56.520.  
 
SECTION 6 ELECTRONIC RECORDS.  Amending code to reflect the County’s obligations under 
current case law with respect to electronic records.  
 
SECTION 7 DENIAL OF PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS--OBJECTION--REVIEW. Amending code 
to reflect current statutory language under RCW 42.56.520. 
 
SECTION 8 ADOPTION OF FORM--REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS. Amending code to reflect 
current internet address.  
 
SECTION 9 SEVERABILITY.  Severability clause. 
 
SECTION 10 EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon its 
passage and adoption.   
 
 
 
 



1

Marilu Flores

From: Lisa Small
Sent: Thursday, May 02, 2013 4:11 PM
To: Marilu Flores
Subject: FW: Benton County Ground water

FYI  
 

From: Jerome Delvin  
Sent: Thursday, May 02, 2013 4:08 PM 
To: 'DOlsenEcon@aol.com' 
Cc: Lisa Small 
Subject: RE: Benton County Ground water 
 
D.O. we are set for May 14th agenda. We start at 9:00am. 
 
Jerome Delvin, Commissioner 
Benton County 
(509) 786‐5600 
 

From: DOlsenEcon@aol.com [mailto:DOlsenEcon@aol.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, April 30, 2013 3:11 PM 
To: Jerome Delvin 
Subject: Re: Benton County Ground water 
 
  
Commissioner (Jerome), 
  
As we discussed, how about the 14th? 
  
Thanks, 
  
D.O. 
BCWCB 
  
In a message dated 4/10/2013 11:07:11 A.M. Pacific Daylight Time, Jerome.Delvin@co.benton.wa.us writes: 

Greetings Dr. Olsen, 

I’m requesting the Benton County Conservancy Board assist the Benton County Commissioners on the 
proposed joint WA DOE, Kittitas, Yakima and Benton counties ground water MOU.  

The commissioners had a conversation at a recent commission meeting about this issue and are looking 
for a solution that fits Benton County needs for addressing it.  

Concerns were expressed about the need for a new regulatory system in the county and the cost 
associated with it to meet the goals in the proposed MOU.  Also what can be done within the current 
water systems, such as irrigation, in the three counties to conserve, be more efficient and use new 

mf
Text Box
Benton County Groundwater Discussion ~ D Olsen & Comnr Delvin



2

technology to meet the water concerns expressed by the proposed MOU. Does the amount of water in 
question cause the need for such action by the counties? 

If the Board is willing to meet with the full commission and talk about this, I will request a time on a 
commission agenda in the near future. 

Jerome Delvin, Commissioner 

Benton County 

(509) 786-5600 

 



mf
Text Box
Interfund Loan to Treasurer’s Investment Pool Fund Update ~ N Kooiker







Benton County
Animal Control Update

May 14, 2013

mf
Text Box
Animal Control Update ~ K Mercer



Animal Control Department
*February 15, 2011 through December 31, 2011

**January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2013

***Euthanasia is only performed if medically necessary or the stray dog is deemed dangerous or potentially dangerous.

 -

 50

 100

 150

 200

 250

 300

 350

2011* 2012 2013**

182 

122 

37 

2 

2 

1 

29 

46 

22 

73 

42 

11 

41 

79 

28 

327 

291 

99 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

D
o

g
s

Animal Control Statistics

Adopted Died Euthanized*** Return to Owner Transferred Out



Animal Control Department
*February 15, 2011 through December 31, 2011

**January 1, 2013 through April 30, 2013

***Euthanasia is only performed if medically necessary or the stray dog is deemed dangerous or potentially dangerous.

43.5 

26.1 

8.1 

 -

 5

 10

 15

 20

 25

 30

 35

 40

 45

2011* 2012 2013**

Average Length of Stay in Days

Average Length of Stay in Days Target



Questions



 

P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 
commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     

  

                                          
May 7, 2013 
 
Mr. Trent Hurlbut 
Solid Waste Planner & Grant Officer 
Department of Ecology 
15 W. Yakima Avenue, Suite 200 
Yakima, WA  98902 
 
RE: Grant No. G1300017 
 
Dear Mr. Hurlbut: 
 
On August 20, 2012, Benton County received Grant No. G1300017 from the Department of Ecology 
(DOE) with a maximum eligible cost in the amount of $125,066.67 for the purpose of purchasing 
property for siting a Moderate Risk Waste Facility. 
 
We recently received a proposed amendment from DOE that would change the scope of the grant from 
purchasing a site to conducting a siting survey and document findings for the new Benton County 
Moderate Risk Waste Facility and authorizing equipment purchases for the compost facility at the Horn 
Rapids Landfill. The maximum eligible cost remained the same and would be broken down as follows: 
$35,066.67 to be used for the siting survey and the remaining $90,000.00 to be used for purchasing 
equipment. Richland proposed purchasing the equipment and having Benton County submit the bill to 
DOE for reimbursement. Benton County would then reimburse Richland after receiving the funding from 
DOE. Administrative staff became concerned about the potential for any audits or findings as this process 
did not comply with the original grant agreement.  
 
Benton County Public Works Staff met with Pete Rogalsky, Public Works Director for the City of 
Richland, and outlined the County’s concerns. The outcome of that meeting was to request de-obligation 
of the Grant funds, which would allow DOE and the City of Richland to enter into an agreement or amend 
an existing agreement for equipment purchases for the compost facility at the Horn Rapids Landfill. 
 
Benton County is requesting that the maximum eligible cost of $125,066.67, as provided in Grant No. 
G1300017, be de-obligated to the Department of Ecology. 
 
Sincerely 
 
 
 
Shon Small 
Chairman, Benton County Commissioners 
 
cc: Donna Homes, Solid Waste Specialist 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 

Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
Grant De-Obligation ~ S Becken



mf
Text Box
Proposed Kennewick Shop Discussion ~ S Becken






















	Agenda Minutes 050713
	Approval of Minutes
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers


	CA - Animal a
	CA - Commissioners b
	CA - Commissioners c
	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Commissioners e
	CA - Commissioners f
	CA - Commissioners g
	CA - Commissioners h
	CA - Facilities i
	Agenda action sheet-Banlin
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION

	Contract Resolution
	13 02 14 - Benton County copy
	Benton County Jail Window Proposal - Rev. 1
	Quote-130320aRev1-Window
	Quote

	Contract - Banlin Construction

	CA - Fairgrounds j
	CA - Human Services k
	CA - Human Services l
	CA - Juvenile m
	CA - OPD n
	CA - OPD o
	CA - OPD p
	CA - Public Works q
	CA - Public Works r
	CA - Sheriff s
	CA - Sheriff t
	PH - Desert Winds Wireless Franchise
	PH - Ordinance Public Records
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County

	Public Record Agenda 051413.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY :  See above.
	MOTION:
	Move to approve and sign the Resolution and Ordinance relating to public records.


	Timed - Animal Control Update
	Timed - Grant De-Obligation
	Timed - Groundwater
	Timed - Interfund Loan
	Timed - Kennewick Shop
	Timed - Treasurer Investment Pool
	Timed - WSU Update



